From: Dan Carlson

To: "trav.story@simplicivil.com"

Cc: Neil Caulkins; Mark Cook; Jeremy Johnston; Kelly Bacon (CD); "Carmody@mftlaw.com"
Subject: SE-21-00006 Administrative Determination

Date: Friday, June 4, 2021 3:01:09 PM

Attachments: SE-21-00006 Nunnally Administrative Determination.pdf

Mr. Story,

Please see attached correspondence regarding the above-referenced application.

Dan Carlson, AICP

Community Development Services Director
Kittitas County

411 N Ruby ST, Suite 2

Ellensburg WA 98926

(509) 933-8244
dan.carlson@co.kittitas.wa.us

The information transmitted by this email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. This email may contain
confidential and/or privileged material. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, be aware that any use, review,
retransmission, distribution, or reproduction is strictly prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender immediately and
delete the material from all devices.
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KITTITAS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
411 N. Ruby St., Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA 98926

CDS@CO.KITTITAS. WA.US

Office (509) 962-7506

June 4, 2021

Trav Story
PO Box 745
Moses Lake, WA 98837

RE: SE-21-00006 Nunnally, Administrative Determination that Plat Alteration is Required

Mr. Story:

I have reviewed the record for the above-referenced SEPA application and determined that it is necessary to
issue a written administrative interpretation in accordance with KCC 15A.01.040(2)(b) regarding the need
for a plat alteration for the proposed project.

KCC 15A.01.040(2)(a) authorizes the Community Development Services (CDS) Director to administer
several Titles of Kittitas County Code, including Title 16, Subdivisions. Title 16 was enacted under the
authority of RCW 58.17. RCW 58.17 contemplates local subdivision regulations and, indeed, relies upon
them. RCW 58.17 and KCC Title 16 supplement each other to such a degree that they are inextricably
intertwined. One cannot talk about subdivision in Kittitas County without discussing both RCW 58.17 and
KCC Title 16.

The current subdivision code was adopted by ordinance 2005-31 which was expressly adopted to reflect new
changes in RCW 58.17. RCW 58.17.030 provides that every subdivision shall comply with it and that short
subdivisions comply with local regulations adopted pursuant to RCW 58.17.060. RCW 58.17.033 provides
that proposed subdivisions are to be reviewed under the local regulation in effect at the time of application
submittal and that a complete application is to be locally defined. RCW 58.17.040(2) contemplates local
subdivision regulation and exempts certain division from the applicability of RCW 58.17 unless local
regulation requires platting of such divisions, in which case the entire RCW 58.17 would then apply to such
divisions. RCW 58.17.060 requires adoption of local regulation for short platting. RCW 58.17.095 allows
the municipality to set what is to be a short or long plat (by number of lots created). RCW 58.17.100
provides that the sole authority to adopt and amend platting ordinances shall reside with the local legislative
body. RCW 58.17.275 requires Kittitas County to give notice if we are contemplating amending ordinances
adopted pursuant to Ch.58.17 RCW. RCW 58.17.320 intertwines enforcement of RCW 58.17 with that of
local subdivision regulations. 15A.01.030 Applicability, provides that “The provisions of this title shall
apply to all land use permits under KCC Titles 15, 15A, 16, 17, and 17A, county shoreline master program,
and to any related regulation or any other ordinance or law implementing these provisions. This would
sweep in Ch. 58.17 RCW.

KCC 15A.01.040(2)(b) gives the CDS Director the authority to issue written opinions upon, among other
things, “Title 16, Subdivisions” and the application of such regulations upon specific parcels. Such written
opinions are appealable to the Kittitas County Hearing Examiner pursuant to KCC 15A.01.040(4)(i). As
described above, talking about subdivision regulation in Kittitas County is not possible to do without
discussing RCW 58.17 because the two are necessarily intertwined. The state statute itself creates and
requires this inextricable link.

The above-referenced SEPA application proposes to develop a new road to access 13 existing lots, including
12 lots that were created via exempt segregation and are shown on the attached record of survey. This new
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road would provide access to the 12 lots via Strande Road. The attached record of survey that created the
lots through exempt segregation, however, shows a proposed road providing access via Hanson Road.
Therefore, the proposed change would alter the proposed access to these 12 lots.

RCW 58.17.020 defines “subdivision™ as the division of land into five or more lots. Therefore, even though
the exempt segregation process no longer exists, the twelve lots shown on the attached record of survey are
considered a subdivision according to RCW 58.17. RCW 58.17.040(2) provides that the entire chapter shall
apply to divisions of land creating lots larger than five (5) acres in size if the governing authority adopted a
subdivision ordinance requiring plat approval of such divisions. KCC 16.04.010 (adopted in 2005) provides
that “Every division ... within the unincorporated area of Kittitas County shall proceed in compliance with
this title and Kittitas County Code.” That title is denominated as “16, Subdivisions”. Therefore, all of Ch.
58.17 applies to this subject property. RCW 58.17.215 states that anyone interested in altering a subdivision
or any portion thereof shall submit an application for alteration to the county and that the application shall be
processed in accordance with the procedures contained therein. The proposed access change would be an
alteration to a subdivision as defined by RCW 58.17, because altering the access is altering any portion of a
subdivision, and therefore a plat alteration application is required.

KCC 15A.01.040(4)(i) allows for administrative determinations such as code interpretations to be appealed
to the Kittitas County Hearing Examiner. Appeals of an administrative decision shall be filed with
Community Development Services within 10 working days of the decision in accordance with KCC
15A.07.010.

Please let me know if you have questions.

Sincerely,

Dan Carlson, AICP
Community Development Services Director

Enclosure: Record of Survey Creating 12 Lots

CC:  James Carmody, Attorney at Law (via email)
Neil Caulkins, Deputy Prosecuting Attorney (via email)
Mark Cook, Public Works Director (via email)
Jeremy Johnston, Planning Official (via email)
Kelly Bacon, Planner (via email)
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